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PROCEEDINGS

CHAIRMAN UDDO: We want to begin promptly at 9:00,
as scheduled, since we have a fairly long list of folks who
are coming to testify today.

I think the first thing to do, since this is the
first meeting of the Legal Services Corporation
Reauthorization Committee, is to call it to order and to
welcome you all to the meeting. We do not have minutes to
approve, obviously, because we’ve never met before, but we do
have an agenda to approve.

The agenda is gquite simple: It is to take public
testimony on the question of the reauthorization of the Legal
Services Corporation, but I would entertain a motion to
approve the agenda at this time.

MOTION

MR. WITGRAF: So moved.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: 1Is there a second?

MS. LOVE: Second,

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Moved and seconded. All those in.
favor of approving the agenda please signify by saying aye.

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN UDDO: All those opposed?
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{(No response.)

CHAIRMAN UDDO: There weren’t many ayves, but there
were no nays, so I guess the ayes have it.

Our purpose in being here this morning, for those of
you who are here to testify before the committee, as you well
know, is to try to gather as much comment and information from
the public and from interested individuals and organizations
who have something to say about the reauthorization of the
Legal Services Corporation, which 1is something that hasn’t
occurred in quite a long time, therefore making it an even
more significant opportunity than ordinarily would be the
case.

Our purpose is to give you an opportunity to put on
the record your thoughts, your‘ ocbservations, your comments,
your criticisms about what the reauthorization of the Legal
Services Corporation should look like. We have about 23 folks
who have signed up to testify today, and that gives us a
pretty crowded agenda; therefore, there are a couple of
guidelines and rules I guess I will have to repeat throughout.
the day, since people will be coming and going.

I would ask of those of you who testify that you

keep a couple of things in mind: ©One is that we do have a
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5
very crowded hearing schedule, and we need to Kkeep the
comments as brief as possible. We would like to try to keep
the comments to 10 or no more than 15 minutes.

That is not in any way to indicate that we are not
interested in all that you have to say. We will have these
hearings transcribed and any written testimony or comments
that you want to submit will be made a part of the record, and
all the members of the committee will be provided with any
written testimony or comments that you submit.

Therefore, my feeling is that your comments today
should focus on and emphasize the highlights of what you are
concerned about with respect to the reauthorization of Legal
Services, and, if you have more detailed comments, please do
submit them in writing.

Let me welcome the members of the committee. In
addition to myself, there are three other members of the
committee here today: Mr. Bud Kirk is a member of the
committee -- and I’m sure that the name plates show you who
all these folks are -~- Mr. Howard Dana; and our board.
chairman, Mr. George Witgraf, are all members of the
committee, and the record should reflect that they are all

here. The only absent member of the committee is Ms. Pullen,
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Ms. Penny Pullen.

We have three other members of the board: Mr.
Blakeley Hall is here; Jeanine Walbeck; and Ms. Jo Betts Love
are members of the board who are joining us today to hear your
comments and to help inform themselves about this
reauthorization process, and we welcome them today.

For our internal rules of the committee, what I
would suggest is two things: one, because we have such a
crowded agenda, I think that the committee and the other board
members ought to attempt to keep the questions to a minimum,
because I’ve been through these kinds of things before, you
can get started on asking questions and eat up an hour with
one person.

That really is unfair to people at the end of the
day who will either be rushed or maybe won’t have time to
testify at all, because we do have a time deadline of 4:30 to
vacate this room. So I would ask the committee and the other
board members to please be very Jjudiciocus with their
gquestions.

If you have questions that you think are going to be
involved and may take some time for a person testifying to

answer, there is no reason why we cannot ask them to submit an
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7
answer in writing. It is commonly done, and it will give us
an even fuller record. 8o, if you have a question and you do
think it is going to be somewhat involved, or if the person
testifying indicates it is going to be involved, I think that
we can ask them to submit their answer in writing and make it
a part of the record.

Also, 1if after these hearings are over you decide
that'there are some dquestions that occurred at the end of the
hearings or after hearing everyone testify, I would hope that
all of you who testify today would be amenable to answering
written questions, if any of the members of the committee or
the board have such questions and they are submitted to you.

My procedure will be to allow the person to testify,
as I say, cautioning them to stay within 10 or 15 minutes, and
then I will ask the committee members first if they have any
questions.

We welcome questions from the other board members
who are not members of the committee but ask them to be
particularly Jjudicious, because we have a five-person.
committee, and I would 1like to make sure that all of the
members of the committee have the time to get their guestions

answered, because they are going to actually have to
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8
deliberate on a recommendation to the board on April 20, at
our next meeting in Chicago.

So, without further delay, we do have some folks
here who are prepared to testify.

Mr. Gnaizda, Mr. Bob Gnaizda, if you would, just
come up to the microphone and identify yourself and who you
represent.

STATEMENT OF ROBERT GNAIZDA

MR. GNAIZDA: Good morning. My name is Bob Gnaizda.
I‘m a senior partner and a founder of a public interest law
firm, Public Advocates.

I‘m here on behalf of the following organizations:
the largest black organization in California involved in
economic self-sufficiency, the California Council of Urban
Leagues. I‘m the national civil rights advisor for the
nation’s largest Hispanic membership organization: the League

of United Latin American Citizens, with 109,000 members in 43

states.

I'm also here on behalf of the nation’s largest.
Hispanic political organization: the Mexican-American
Political Association. I am here also on behalf of the
nation’s largest Philippine-~American organization: the
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9
Philippine-American Political Association. And, lastly, I'm
here on behalf of the American GI Forum, the nation and the
state’s largest Hispanic veterans organization.

To appreciate what I have to say, I would like to
just briefly introduce my background. I have practiced law
and litigated in the State of cCalifornia for just over 30
years. I was a tax lawyer in cCalifornia. I then was the
first director of 1litigation statewide for California Rural
Legal Assistance and spent most of my time, during that five-
vear period, in Salinas.

During that time, CRLA played a fundamental role in

~achieving the goals of our society. It fought the shame of

hunger in this nation, being the program that produced, for
example, food stamps throughout the nation, the free school
lunch program, and the subsidized free milk program.

I then founded Public Advocates. Public Advocates
was the first public interest law firm established in the
Western United States. I was also the deputy secretary for
health and welfare in California, including responsibility for.
employment, prisons, health, and welfare. I was the State Bar
Board of Governors’ elected member of the Judicial Selection

Commission between 1977 and 1980.
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Our firm is nonpartisan. We are now proudly working
with Governor Wilson, for example, on resolving the problem of
automobile insurance for the poor.

I want to share two of my biases, because they are
biases I believe you share too. I believe strongly in a level
playing field, and;‘ I believe strongly in gquality justice and
equal access to justice. H.R. 1345 will not produce that.

| I want to Jjust restrict my comments to two
interrelated sections: Section 6, which prohibits anyone in
Legal Services, directly or indirectly, having anything to do
with any legislation; and Section 9, which +takes an
unprecedented step of also interfering with any outside funds,
such as IOLTA funds, that might be wused to influence
legislation.

I believe this is part of what I would call the
unilateral disarmament of the poor. The poor now have water
pistols to combat multimillion-dollar law firms that have
guided missiles. We should be focusing on how we rearm the
poor so that they can properly litigate within our litigation.
system, and "within our 1litigation system" includes the
opportunity to influence legislation, as most large law firms

in wWashington, D.C., do quite frequently.
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I believe what we are now embarked upon will
eventually help create legal service eunuchs. We have done
that in part by the low salaries, salaries now for 1legal
service attorneys that are below that for auto mechanics who
are untrained.

I want to put this bill in the context of the
realities that low-income people face in this country, and I
want'to put it in the context of an undisputed fact that less
than 20 percent of those eligible for legal services receive
any type of legal services, much less the opportunity for the
legal services that the wealthy receive.

In 1989, $12.3 billion in revenue was received by
the 1largest 2100 largest law firms in this nation. In
contrast, in that year approximately $320 million went to 55
nmillion persons eligible for legal services. So we are
talking about 50 cents per month for those eligible for legal
services.

This morning in the New York Times it put that in
proper context. You saw the front-page article on the FDIC?.
Kravath, Swain and Moore will be eligible for up to $600 an
hour. At 50 cents a month, that will buy you 3 seconds of

Kravath, Swain and Moore’s senior partners’ time. How can you

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




N

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

12
justify that in the context of some of the outstanding lawyers
in Legal Services?

Here in California, for example, you have an
attorney who is the chief litigator for California Rural Legal
Assistance, Ralph Santiago Abascal, who is more qualified than
Tom Barr, who will be getting $600 an hour. Mr. Abascal has
won more cases; he has tried more cases in the state court and
the 'federal court than Mr. Barr and has been in court more
than Mr. Barr, yet he will receive approximately $12 an hour
for his work at CRLA.

This $12 billion that is received by the 100 largest
law firms constitutes a $4 billion tax subsidy. I want to
explain that. The subsidy works this way: All the expenses
of corporations that employ the 100 largest law firms, all
their legal expenses are tax deductible. Assuming a 34
percent corporate rate, we are talking about $4 billion a
yéar, and I am not even including the state subsidy where
there is a state income tax.

In California, for example, the five largest law.
firms, in 1989, received over $1 billion, $1,013,000,000 in
revenue. That’s 33 times more than the total legal service

budget in cCalifornia. They received a $400 million tax
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subsidy, their clients, or 13 times the legal service budget.

I believe we have to look at these kinds of
subsidies and these kinds of inequities in “judging the
fairness of any of the proposed changes, lobbying and others.
I offer you a couple others regarding lobbying.

Some of you may be familiar, in 1988, the insurance
industry, for one set of initiatives, spent $70 million in
lobbying in the State of California alone to help
unsuccessfully defeat Prop. 103. The Japanese Government
spends more than $100 million a year in 1lobbying. Kuwait
spent over $4.3 million on one lobbying firm for the months of
August, September, and October of 1990.

And let us look at the subsidies. The agricultural
industry, in part not to produce any crops, receives subsidies
of over $20 billion a year. Yet the poor, to have the
opportunity to be in court, receive only $300 million a year.

As a result of this disparity, I believe we have--
and that is the view of groups such as the California Council
of Urban Leagues -~ that we have produced a segregated justice.
system, a separate =-- and unlike Plessy v. Ferguson -- a
separate and unequal justice system.

I would like to make a recommendation, one that I
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think you may share, because it’s consistent with President
Bush’s volunteer proposal. I believe it is necessary to
establish a level playing field. I believe there is no group
more cqualified and more influential in helping to establish a
level playing field than the group that is here this morning,
this panel.

I urge you, as a first step, to recommend to the
President, to the American Bar Association, and to the Legal
Services Corporation as a whole that the Legal Services budget
be tripled without the addition of additional federal funds,
to be tripled by the following method: all large law firms
practicing in the United States tithe 3 percent of their
revenue to the national Legal Services Corporation.

As I indicated earlier, the top 100 firms generated
revenue in 1989 of $12.3 billion. The top 500 firms generated
revenue of $20 billion. Three percent of $20 billion is $600
million a year, or enough to triple the Legal Services budget
and make a dent in the 80 percent of eligible clients who are
unserved.

In conclusion, I urge you to help end the unilateral
disarmament of the poor and arm the poor with the necessary

legal weapons so they can confront the problems that confront
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them uniquely and the problems that confront our society as a
whole.

I thank you. I am prepared to answer any questions,
and I would welcome them. I do intend to submit, at a
subsequent time, written material.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Gnaizda. You set an
excellent exanmple: 10 minutes and 20 seconds. That was
amazing and an extremely cogent presentation.

Are there any questions from members of the
committee first? And, again, I caution you, if there are not
questions, it 1s not because there 1is not interest or
questions, but we are trying to stick to a schedule.

Are there any questions that anyone would want to
ask Mr. Gnaizda? Any members of the board who are not members
of the committee?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you very much, and we look
forward to seeing your written comments that will be nade a
part of the record.

MR. GNAIZDA: Fine. Mr. Chairman, may I just ask
one additional question?

CHAIRMAN UDDQ: Sure.
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MR. GNAIZDA: I am curious as to whether any members
of this corporation have in fact thought of some national
mechanism of securing volunteer tithing or other forms of
broad-based monetary assistance to the underfunded Legal
Services Corporation?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Yes. The chairman is telling me
that, of course, that was the theory, to some extent, behind
IOLTA, but it’s different from what you’re talking about, in
that you’re talking about the revenues of the firm and not the
interest in the trust accounts.

I guess I’ve been on the board longer than anybody

here, and a proposal such as yours, I have not heard of a

proposal such as yours. That’s not to say that someone hasn’t
discussed it before, but I think it’s interesting and
innovative, and would be a highly controversial suggestion. I
don’t think there’s any question about that. But I don’t know
of anyone that has.

MR. WITGRAF: I think you will find that the State
of Minnesota, through its Supreme Court, is in the process of
promulgating a lawyer-by-lawyer assessment. It had nothing to
do with the revenues of a given firm, but it has to do with

the licensure of lawyers in that state to provide for the
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purpose you’re describing with monies to be spent much as
IOLTA monies are spent in that and other states right now.

But I think you are headed in the same direction
that many of the judicial and legal leaders of the country
are. Whether it will take this route exactly remains to be
seen, but I think what you are saying is consistent with where
those people on the cutting edge are moving.

| CHAIRMAN UDDO: You may, Mr. Gnaizda, want to
communicate with Mr. Dana, who is the chairman of the Audit
and Appropriations Committee, because that may be a better
committee to deal with this than Reauthorization. It may be
the sort of thing that Audit and Appropriations may want to
give some thought to and make a recommendation on.

MR. GNAIZDA: Fine.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you very much, Mr. Gnaizda.

MR. GNAIZDA: Thank you very much.

MR. DANA: Mr. Chairman, just before Bob leaves, I
had heard this suggestion in your home town about two years
ago from this very same gentleman. I think it was two years.
ago that you were proposing to the assembled group that all
lawyers tithe or -- I’m not sure "tithe" is the right word--

but take 3 percent of their income.
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I do think that the organized bar is moving in that
direction on a voluntary basis, not in any sense to the degree
that you’re talking about, but, in terms of time, I think
probably that is about the nature of the commitment that is
being talked about and being urged on all lawyers. And, in
terms of the dollar cost, I don’t think society or the bar is
anywhere near 3 percent. Whether or not you can get us there
is another question.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Gnaizda.

MR. GNAIZDA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Next is Mr. Edward ZXallgren,
representative of the California Bar Association.

Mr. Kallgren.

STATEMENT OF EDWARD KALLGREN

MR. KALLGREN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, my name
is Edward E. Kallgren. I am an attorney in private practice
in San Francisco and a member of the Board of Governors of the
State Bar of California.

Charles Vogel, president of the state bar, has asked
me to represent him here today, as he has a conflicting

appointment that he could not change. On behalf of the
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president and the approximately 130,000 lawyers in California,
I want to welcome you to San Francisco and to express our
appreciation for your coming to hear the views of
knowledgeable and concerned Californians on the proposed
legislation to reauthorize the Legal Services Corporation.

One of the established goals of our state bar is to
respond to the need for full and eqﬁal access of all persons,
regatdless of circumstances, to the Jjustice system and to
facilitate the delivery of gquality 1legal services to such
persons. As a result, we have a long history of support for
legal services for poor people and for the Legal Services
Corporation.

We have consistently opposed actions that would
lessen the effectiveness of programs which provide lawyers for
the poor. I appear before you today in opposition to the
uncalled for restrictions of the McCollum-Stenholm bill, H.R.
1345, in the hope that your committee and the LSC Board will
oppose these restrictions.

Last October, our board of governors went on record.
against passage of the proposals then known as the McCollum-
Staggers-Stenholm bill. The state bar remains opposed to such

restrictions as incorporated into the new bill. In addition,
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some new proposals in the new bill affecting attorney-client
relationships are also contrary to the basic principles that
have been approved by the state bar in the past and which
raise serious concerns.

Before touching briefly on three of these concerns,
let me express our overall difficulty with the proposals
presently before us. As I have said, the State Bar of
California has a long involvement with the provision of legal
services to the poor, and, accordingly, it has been a staunch
supporter of the Legal Services Corporation.

We understand the practical necessity of
establishing certain rules of uniform applicability across the
country and of assuring that LSC-funded entities are
accountable for the monies they receive and expend those
monies consistently with the basic purposes of the LSC
legislation.

However, we sense, in the bill before us and in
other proposals that have been put forth in recent years, an
atmosphere of distrust, if not overt hostility, toward local.
legal service providers, an attitude which seems to seek to
restrict and inhibit local initiatives and local programs for

assistance to the poor in favor of complex and convoluted,
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federally~imposed procedural and substantive strictures which
have no apparent legitimate purpose.

‘Certainly, where abuses exist they should be curbed.
And if a case were made for the existence of widespread
abuses, then perhaps comprehensive new regqulations are called
for, but no such case has been made. 1Instances of abuse are
rare and generally insignificant, and, for the most part, they
can-be dealt with at the local level. The restraints that
would be imposed by the McCollum-Stenholm bill are, on the
other hand, comprehensive, pervasive, and deeply intrusive.

We find its innate philosophy, as well as numerous
of its specific provisions, to be inconsistent with the
concept of maximizing the legal services that can be made
available to the poor with the limited resources available,
and inconsistenﬁ with the original congressicnal policies
behind the legislation creating the Legal Services Corporation
and the policies of the 1legislature of the State of
California, and I am sure of most other states, with respect
to our local Legal Services programs.'

The State Bar of California’s opposition rests
principally on three grounds: First, it is the bar’s

responsibility to promote the availability and improve the
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quality of legal services so that the poor in California have
full and effective access to the courts and the legal systen
to protect their legal rights.

The McCollum—-Stenholm bill would hamper the delivery
of legal services to poor people in California and would
interfere with the professional responsibility of our member
lawyers to serve their clients.

| Second, the State Bar of California is responsible
under law for the administration of the Legal Services Trust
Fund Program, California’s IOLTA program. The Mc-Collum-
Stenholm bill would, for no legitimate purpose that we can
ascertain, restrict the use of IOLTA grants in California in
ways unintended and unwanted by the California legislature.

And, third, the proposals, if passed, would intrude
improperly on the right of the boards of Legal Services
programs in California to determine local priorities and
needs, so as to allocate their resources effectively on behalf
of low—-income citizens who require legal services.

Let me begin with the issue of local control. The.
State Bar of cCalifornia, in partnership with 1local bar
associations, makes appointments to the boards of some 12

Legal Services programs in California. Both in this
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connection and in connection with our administration of the
IOLTA program, the state bar has had occasion to think
carefully about how Legal Services programs should operate.

We believe that most decisions regarding the needs
and priorities of the poor can best be made locally, not from
the state bar in San Francisco, and not from the Legal
Services Corporation or from Congress in Washington.

| The provisions of this year’s McCollum-Stenholm bill
regarding the authority of 1local governing boards, though
improved over last year‘’s bill, present local governing boards
with some serious and unnecessary problems.

The bill would give LSC explicit authority to create
a suggested list of priorities. While the bill would not make
this 1list compulsory, we have seen repeatedly that staff of
the corporation will take every opportunity to try to force
grantees to conform to its own agenda. This history makes
even a suggested list ominous.

Further, local program staff would be forbidden to
undertake matters not already on their priority list except in.
emergencies, and LSC would monitor such cases. As things now
stand, priorities guide the work of the programs but do not

bind them to a rigid case selection process. That is how it
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should be; otherwise, we may prevent programs from dealing
effectively with new and unexpected legal issues and changed
circumstances facing their clients.

Legal problems don’t arise in an orderly,
predictable manner, and local boards should not be prohibited
by a rigid priority list from dealing with the unexpected.

The Legal Services Corporation has in place ample
protéctions to ensure that the boards’ programs are diverse,
that they represent the local community and needs of c¢lients,
and that they operate effectively. To the greatest extent
possible, LSC should leave to each local board the authority
to allocate resources to best meet local client needs and to
decide how best to govern and manage lccal programs.

This kind of system has been in place for many years
and has worked well. It is a system that California law sets
up for our IOLTA recipients, and much of our monitoring effort
for our own IOLTA grantees is aimed at assuring that they have
in place a strong and effective board and system of
governance. Then we can leave to the organization decisions.
about what its priorities should be and how they should
deliver legal services.

Oone kind of decision a local bocard can make most
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effectively is the manner in which services will be delivered,
how resources will be allocated among various delivery
systems. We are very troubled by the prospect of competitive
bidding, largely because the decisions about delivery systems
and providers would be made by bureaucrats, far removed from
the responsible local boards which have a direct, firsthanad
knowledge about clients’ needs and circumstances.

However, even when decisions are made locally, such
as in the criminal field, there are many problenms. In an
effort to address some of those problems, the State Bar of
California, though an appointed commission, conducted a study
and prepared a set of guidelines for competition in the
criminal defense system in the state.

our study concluded that one indispensable element
for providing proper services is a locally-run and adequately-
staffed program alongside whatever part of the work is
contracted out to other methods of delivering services. Even
then, there must be strict guidelines to avoid abuse and
ensure quality of service.

We would be pleased to provide you with a copy of
these guidelines, if you wish,

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I would like for you to do that, if
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you would.

MR. KALLGREN: Okay. Fine. That’s done.

A second part of the McCollum-Stenholm bill that I
want to address 1is the proposal for widening the LSC
restrictions on the use of funds from other sources. We see
absolutely no justifiable purpose for such restrictions which
would, among other things, effectively regulate use of
California IOLTA funds in ways not contemplated by the
California legislature and not necessary or appropriate in the
view of the California State Bar.

California’s IOLTA program was created by our state
legislature in 1981 in the face of expected dramatic decreases
in the available Legal Services funding, accompanied by
increased restrictions on the funds that remained. By 1law,
funds generated by thié program must be used exclusively for
free, civil legal services to the poor, including both direct
service and backup support services,

No funds may be used for certain restricted
purposes, such as services in criminal matters, in fee-.
generating cases, and services to clients who do not meet
eligibility guidelines. oOtherwise, the law does not restrict

the clients who can be served, the matters that can be
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addressed, or the types of legal work to be performed.

IOLTA grants in California may be used to provide
any eligible poor person with the same kinds of services that
any privately-retained lawyer would provide to his or her
¢lient. Close to two-thirds of the IOLTA funds in California
go to programs that also receive LSC funding.

Today IOLTA grants in California are recognized by
the Legal Services Corporation as public funds, not subject to
the restrictions of the LSC Act. But the McCollum-Stenholm
bill would change this and remove the power of the California
legislature to decide how two-thirds of California IOLTA money
can be used.

For example, California law permits recipients to
use grant funds to serve noncitizens. Our law contains
legislative findings that the legal needs of indigent, non-
English-speaking persons are insufficiently addressed, and one
of its stated purposes is to increase the availability of such
services. By prohibiting the use of other funds to serve
aliens, Section 15 of the McCollum-Stenholm bill would limit
the use of California IOLTA funds in a way inconsistent with
the California legislature’s clearly-stated intent.

The State Bar of California opposes this change, and
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we oppose any federal restrictions that would prevent the use
of IOLTA grants in California for the purposes for which they
were intended and for which they are granted. Although some
of these purposes may be different than those of the Legal
Services Corporation, California IOLTA money will not be used
for anything other than the highest possible quality legal
services for poor people.

California delegates responsibility for
administering our IOLTA program to the State Bar of
California, a responsibility that we carry out through a 25-
member Legal Services Trust Fund Commission. That commission,
which is made up of lawyers and lay people, including clients,
meets regularly and works diligently at its duties. it
handles decisions about eligibility for funding and budgeting
of grants; it monitors delivery of 1legal services in
California; and it sets overall policy.

The commission and the paid staff assigned to the
program regularly monitor and evaluate the use of funds by
individual grantees. In many cases, they use systems and.
procedures for tracking grantee activity and monitoring
performance that have been adapted from LSC procedures. I can

assure you that we, like you, take our responsibility to the
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poor, who are the ultimate beneficiaries of our grants, very,
very seriously.

Finally, let me tell you briefly about the state
bar’s concerns regarding several of the McCollum-Stenholm
proposals that would interfere with the exercise of the
ethical and professional responsibilities of Jlawyers for
indigent clients.

| CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Kallgren, let me just stop you a
second. You have about three minutes, and I see it’s a
prepared statement which could be submitted to us. Would you
prefer to finish that on the record and leave no time for
questions, or would you like us to take --

MR. KALLGREN: Well, I’d just as soon -- I could
even talk faster, if you like.

{(Laughter)

MR. KALLGREN: I’ve been trying to move along.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: No, you have been doing fine. But I
want to make sure we have a little time for questions.

MR. KALLGREN: OKkay.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Why don’t you go ahead and finish,

MR. KALLGREN: I mentioned that the California

legislature in the IOLTA law provides that 1legal service
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lawyers are free to provide the same services that any other
lawyer would provide to a client.

The 1law goes on to impose certain specific
affirmative requirements. For example, all recipients of
grant funds must ensure the preservation of the attorney-
client privilege; they must promise to protect the integrity
of the adversary process from impairment in their furnishing
of iegal assistance to their client; and they must guarantee
that no one will interfere with any attorney’s professional
responsibility to the client.

We believe that.the McCollum-Stenholm bill would put
LS8C~funded lawyers in California at odds with this law, as
well as with their other ethical responsibilities under the
state bar rules of professional conduct, which govern the
legal profession in California. The so-called procedural
safeguards for litigation are just the kind of attack on the
integrity of the adversarial process that the California law
prohibits.

Under the proposal, at the earliest stages of their.
representation by an attorney, clients would be required to
provide a detailed, notarized affidavit presenting all

relevant facts, which affidavit would be provided both to LSC
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and eventually to the opposing party. This is not something
that well~to-do clients or their attorneys have to bother
with.

The effect of this change is not just to impose
additional burdensome paperwork; it would discriminate against
poor people served by Legal Services programs, possibly
deterring them from seeking legal remedies to which they are
entitled.

Similarly, trying to prevent Legal Services lawyers
from using the Civil Rights Attorneys’ Fees Award Act and many
fee-shifting statutes that are available to private parties in
California is an interference with the process that has been
established by consistent legislative activity for important
public policy purposes to enable people to enforce their civil
and constitutional rights.

| The proposed restrictions on solicitation are much
broader than those contained in the cCalifornia rules of
professional conduct and may be unconstitutional, as well.
They would hold Legal Services lawyers to a stricter standard
than other lawyers, even though court decisions have held that
when attorneys undertake work for other than pecuniary profit

they are in some circumstances exempt from the prohibitions
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against solicitation.

The proposed bill’s effort to redefine the term
"attorney-client" privilege is of particular concern to the
state bar. California law, like that of many other states,
protects far more of communication between attorneys and
clients than would be covered by this proposal. The proposed
definition, for example, would not protect communications by
the attorney to the client, and it may leave open to
disclosure attorney-client communications not initiated
specifically for the purpose of seeking legal advice.

It is the ethical duty of an attorney in California
to maintain inviolate the confidence and at every peril -- in
california "to maintain inviolate the confidence and at every
peril to himself or herself to preéerve the secrets of his or
her client." There is indeed peril here. Legal Services
lawyers would be in an impossible position: either viclate
their ethical responsibilities, thus risking their license to
practice law, or lose LSC funding.

What is the reason for these provisions that.
interfere with the adversarial process and strike at the very
heart of the attorney-client relationship? What evidence is

there of abuse? Certainly, we in California are not aware of
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any evidence of abuses that would support these drastic
changes.

Our IOLTA program has regular, systematic, and
frequent contact with 35 LSC-funded field offices, support
centers, and law schools, along with other entities that
receive LSC funds by subcontract. If we saw the kind of abuse
of the 1legal process to which these draconian changes are
appafently directed, we would support appropriate, though
clearly 1less intrusive, reforms. But we do not see such
abuses.

Further, we believe it is wholly inappropriate for a
federal agency to try to redefine the ethical rules governing
the practice of law in a state which have been carefully
crafted by the lawyers, the state bar, the legislature, and
our Supreme Court, thus creating two sets of ethics: one for
those representing the poor, and another for everyone else.

For the foregoing reasons and possibly others, we
urge you to oppose the McCollum-Stenholm bill. We think it is
an improper and unwise intrusion into the rights of.
responsible California governmental agencies and the boards of
Legal Services programs throughout our state.

We are pleased you came to San Francisco and
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appreciate the opportunity to address you on this very
important topic. We wish you all the best of 1luck in
achieving the goals of your corporation.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you very much, Mr. Kallgren.

Any members of the committee have a question or two?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I may have some that I will submit
in writing to you.

MR. KALLGREN: We would ke very happy to answer any
questions that the committee or any of its members or other
members of the full committee would like to ask.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Yes, I think I will have a few that
I will submit in writing, because it will take much too long
to discuss right now.
| MR. KALLGREN: Right. And we will provide you with
a copy of those guidelines.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you very much, Mr. Kallgren.

Mr. Steve Brick, represents the San Francisco Bar.
Association.

STATEMENT OF STEVEN BRICK

MR. BRICK: Good morning, Mr. Chairman, and mémbers
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of the committee. It is a privilege to appear before you, and
thank you for coming to our fair city on a nice, nonfoggy,
nonrainy, day.

It is also a privilege to share this microphone with
people with Bob Gnaizda and Ed Kallgren. Bob reminded me, as
we came in this morning, that I’ve known him now for 20 years.
He really exemplifies the best in public interest law in this
country, and I hope you appreciate that. Ed Kallgren is a man
for whom I worked when he ran for the Berkeley City Council in
the early 1970s, and he exemplifies the best in the organized
bar and its interest in providing guality legal services to
the poor.

I am Steven Brick. I am president of the Bar
Association of San Francisco and an attorney with the firm of
Warrick, Harrington and Sutcliffe here in San Francisco.

The Bar Association of San Francisco is a voluntary
bar association. It was founded in 1872. Its primary
purposes have always included the promotion of the sound
édministration of justice for the rich and for the poor.

I am speaking here today not only on behalf of the
8500 members of our association but also on behalf of the

26,000 members of the ILos Angeles County Bar Association.
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Together, our two associations represent almost 30 percent of
the practicing attorneys in California.

BASF, as we are known, has encouraged its members to
do pro bono work throughout its history. After the 1906
earthquake, for example, our predecessors worked with state
and local officials to solve the many problems caused by the
loss of life and property which devastated our city.

Eighteen months ago, when the Loma Prieda earthquake
again destroyed hundreds of homes and apartments, our
association immediately set up a hotline and began giving free
legal advice about how to make applications to FEMA, landlord-
tenant problems, insurance problems, and the many, many other
legal problems that affected the homeless and those who
temporarily became homeless.

LSC, you may know, provided our VLSP program with a
special grant to help offset the expenses of those efforts.
VLSP, or Volunteer Legal Services Program, is a 501{c)(3)
corporatién affiliated with our association. It 1is our
principal means of delivering legal services to the poor. It
is a recipient of supplemental field funding from LSC, and it
has been incredibly successful.

With a budget of $1 million last year, VLSP’s 3,000
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volunteer attorneys and 900 volunteer legal assistants served
nearly 12,000 indigent clients. The value of those services,
conservatively estimated, was more than $11 million. This
year we expect to do more. As chair of the VLSP Board, I can
attest to the quality of the services that VLSP provides and
to the commitment of the attorneys involved in the program,
both our volunteers and our paid staff.

| San Francisco Neighborhood Legal Assistance
Foundation, or SFNLAF, is the primary provider of legal
services to the poor in San Francisco. BASF appoints a
majority of the SFNLAF Board.

In 1980, SFNLAF had 72 staff members in 7
neighborhood offices throughout the city. Today, they have 28
staff members and 1 office. SFNLAF, nonetheless, has
continued to serve clients in San Francisco’s neighborhoods by
establishing 1liaisons with neighborhood agencies and by
holding regular c¢linics in the neighborhoods with the greatest
needs. Although SFNLAF is actively seeking additional state
and private funds, they are very limited and very difficult to.
cbtain.

Programs 1like VLSP and SFNLAF help to £fill an

incredible and still unmet need for legal services in our
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society. They deserve support and additional funding, yet
H.R. 1345, the McCollum-Stenholm amendments, will reduce
funding sources, hamper the efforts of Legal Services
attorneys, and disrupt proven legal service delivery systenms
like VLSP and SFNLAF.

The bar associations I represent today oppose H.R.
1345, and they do so because it conflicts with the
conQressional purposes underlying the Legal Services
Corporation. Those purposes which are enumefated in the Legal
Services Corporation Act are worth repeating.

It has long been acknowledged that the purposes of
the Act are to provide equal access to the system of Jjustice
in our country, to provide high-quality legal assistance to
those who would otherwise be unable to afford adequate legal
counsel, and to ensure that attorneys providing 1legal
assistance have full freedom to protect the best interests of
their clients, in keeping with the code of professional
responsibility, the canons of ethics, and the high standards
of the legal proféssion.

H.R. 1345, reqgrettably, is incompatible with these
goals. Time does not permit me to discuss each of H.R. 1345's

provisions today, but I would like to address several specific
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aspects of the bill, at 1least briefly. These provisions
concern restrictions on solicitation, special procedural
requirements for Legal Services attorneys, local priority
setting, the regulation of IOLTA funds, competitive bidding,
attorneys’ fees, Rule 11, and the definition of the attorney-
client privilege.

On the solicitation issue, Section 4 of H.R. 1345
contains restrictions on legislation that would deny some
groups the equal access to the justice system that Congress
has envisioned. Here in San Francisco, these restrictions
could adversely impact several important projects that VLSP
currently administers in conjunction with SFNLAF and other
local agencies,

The purpose of these programs is to provide outreach
and services to the homeless, people with AIDS, and battered
women. Each of these groups has significant barriers to
access to legal services, and outreach is often the only way
that these groups learn about and utilize the services that
are available. H.R. 1345, however, might well prochibit VLSP
and SFNLAF staff attorneys from engaging in many of these
necessary outreach activities.

In addition, the solicitation restrictions conflict
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with the majority of existing state ethical rules. Under the
ethical rules in force in cCalifornia, for example, Legal
Services attorneys may provide legal advice to nonclients and
accept legal representation that results from that advice.
H.R. 1345 would prohibit acceptance of representation under
these circumstances.

It would also conflict with the current version of
the'Legal Services Corporation Act, which prohibits LSC from
abrogating state authority to enforce standards of
professional responsibility.

Let me turn to Section 5. That section contains
special procedural requirements over and above those imposed
by federal and state procedural rules that apply only to poor
litigants represented by Legal Services attorneys. The
establishment of these discriminatory regquirements is itself
objectionable and incompatible with Congress’ goal that LSC
ensure equal justice for the poor.

In addition, these requirements are unworkable and
unnecessary. Section 5 would require Legal Services attorneys.
to create for each complaint they are thinking about filing,
and each time they engage in precomplaint settlement efforts,

to obtain a signed statement that sets forth all of the facts
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on which the case is based.

This statement would be available not only to LSC
and other federal agencies but also to opposing counsel
through the discovery process, thus providing a significant
advantage to defendants in actions initiated by indigent
litigants.

Presumably, the purpose of the statement regquirement
is ﬁo ensure that Legal Services attorneys are not bringing
unfounded claims, but we are not aware of any evidence that
Legal Services attorneys bring unfounded claims or fail to
investigate claims sufficiently before filing themn. To nmy
knowledge, and we have investigated this, no Legal Services
attorney has ever been sanctioned or a sanction upheld for a
violation of Rule 11 or a state law eguivalent.

Why then should Congress or the LSC require counsel
to create a document which the defendants will seek to use to
their advantage and which they are not required to prepare
before filing the answer?

Such a provision goes directly against the purposes.
of providing equal access to the system of justice in our
nation and of affording attorneys who serve the poor full

freedom to protect the best interests of their client. 1It’s
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the opposite of the level playing field that Bob Gnaizda spoke
to you about.

Let me turn to local priority-setting. President
Reagan said that federalism is one of the most essential and
underlying principles of our Constitution. Local control is
also the guiding principle for the system of delivery
established by the Legal Services Corporation Act. Under the
Act, local boards composed of attorneys and clients from
within a community set general priorities for the types of
cases that the community’; program will undertake.

Section 8 of H.R. 1345 interferes with this
principle by reguiring LSC to provide local boards with a
suggested list of priorities that boards may use in developing
local priorities. While use of LSC’s priorities is not
required, it is questionable whether such a list is nedessary
or appropriate.

As chair of VLSP’s board, I can tell you that we
work long and hard at determining the kinds of cases generally
that will best serve the needs of our community. With all due-
respect, VLSP’s board and the local boards of other programs
are better qualified than LSC staff people in Washington to

determine the needs of our local communities.
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Let me turn to regulation of IOLTA funds, and I‘1l
be brief, because Ed spoke very well to this. The bar
assocliations that I represent strongly oppose this provision.
In a time when an estimated 80 percent of the legal needs of
the poor go unmet, every funding dollar for legal services is
essential.

By making IOLTA funds subject to federal law, H.R.
1345 will, at best, discourage the states from funding legal
services that are not funded by the federal government. These
include services for the nonindigent elderly and the
handicapped, for illegal aliens, and for nonindigent racial
and ethnic groups. At worst, this provision will force Legal
Services programs like ours to choose between accepting LSC
money or state funds.

By the way, out of our $1 million we get less than
$30,000 from LSC.

Competitive bidding: We also oppose Section 11 of
H.R. 1345, which provides for the institution of competitive
bidding by LSC. Although inadequately funded, the current.
system for the delivery of legal services to the poor works
well. It has permitted Legal Services programs and individual

attorneys to build up the substantive law expertise that is
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necessary for providing efficient and effective legal services
to the indigent.

It has also permitted programs to attract the
personnel that can meet the special needs of certain client
groups, such as migrant farm workers, children, and the
elderly. Moreover, past experiments with competitive bidding
in the legal services field have not been successful.

| In the area of criminal defense, competitive bidding
has increased costs dramatically, while the quality of
services has declined. Clients services were disrupted when
contractors changed or simply stopped providing services.

Finally, a competitive bid program will undermine
the effects of programs 1like ours to attract wvolunteer
attorneys. VLSP cannot deliver $11 million worth of 1legal
services without the commitment of thousands of attorneys and
legal assistants who donate their time. Since the LSC has
inadequate funds to replace the value of this work,
competitively bidding could significantly decrease the amount
of legal services available to the poor in San Francisco.

In the absence of evidence that the current delivery
system c¢an be substantially improved through competitive

bidding, we should not risk its destruction.
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Turning to attorneys’ fees, we also oppose Section
12 of H.R. 1345, which provides that recipients of LSC funds
may not claim or collect attorneys’ fees from nongovernmental
defendants. Congress and the legislatures of many states have
purposely provided for recovery of attorneys’ fees to
encourage private enforcement of specific laws. Section 12
frustrates that purpose.

| In states 1like California, it would also permit
parties who include attorneys’ fees provisions in their
contracts to avoid their obligations. Please remember that in
order for a party to recover attorneys’ fees, he or she must
First prevail. How does it serve the purposes of Section 1001
of the Act to allow someone guilty of sexual harassment, or
age or race discrimination, or breach of contract to avoid
their obligations? We can see no justification for this kind
of discrimination against the poor.

Another troubling provision of Section 12 gives the
president of LSC the power to determine whether or not a Legal
Services attorney has violated the standards of Rule 11 in a.
particular action and to award attorneys’ fees and costs from
LSC funds to the defendant in that action.

We strongly oppose this provision for three reasons:
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First, this provision wrongly assumes that Legal Services
attorneys need additional monitoring for ethical violations.
That is simply not the case.

Second, this provision assumes that federal judges
cannot adequately enforce Rule 11 when such enforcement is
necessary. We have no reason to believe that that assumption
is correct, and there is no evidence that the courts have
failéd to enforce Rule 11i. 1Indeed, you may be aware of much
discussion in the legal community that it is overenforced.

Finally, in 1light of past problems with LSC’s
administration, we question whether this additional layer of
enforcement will further Congress’ goal that Legal Services
attorneys have full freedom to protect the best interests of
their clients or whether it will in fact lead to harassment of
Legal Services attorneys.

The definition of attorney-client privilege: We
guestion the purpose of Section 21 of the bill in establishing
a more limited attorney-client privilege for the poor than
exists for every other member of our society. Further, we.
question the authority and the wisdom of the federal
government in establishing the parameters of the privilege

that will be in effect in state courts.
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Here again, H.R. 1345 would be an unwarranted
intrusion on the authority of the courts and the state
legislatures and the state bars to establish and enforce their
own ethical and evidentiary rules.

In conclusion, we urge ydu, when you consider this
bill, to ask yourself how it measures up against the three
congressional goals of equal access, high-quality legal
assiétance, and the freedom of Legal Services attorneys to
protect the interests of their clients.

We do not see the provisions in this bill that
enhance services, that increase access, or that give Legal
Services more tools to serve their clients. Instead, we see
restrictions on nonfederal funding, more limitations on the
services that can be offered, and restrictions on attorney
autonony.

For these reasons, the bar associations of San
Francisco and Los Angeles oppose this bill, and we ask that
you do so, as well.

Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Brick.

Any questions from the committee?

MR. KIRK: I have just a couple of comments. I
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don’t think we have time for my questions to be answered, but
maybe others can address them or maybe you can furnish me some
information later.

"Level playing field" has been a byword of the first
three presentations, and I’'m a frequent user of that term
myself, although I must tell you that not all the time is
there a level playing field for anyone. Whether it’s the rich
or the poor, we can oftentimes find aspects that are not
level.

I‘d like to see if you can, and maybe some future
people can, address some specifics. For example, I understand
that if you have to fill out a form before you file your
complaint, that’s not the same as the person that has to file
that answer, but does it make a difference? Yes, I understand
it’s not leﬁel, but I‘m not buying into, "“Oh, it’s not level;
therefore, it’s bad.ﬁ

I’d like to hear what the specifics are. I’d like
to hear some thoughts on if in fact some advantages can be
gained by restricting the use of IOLTA funds. How do we know
that other comparable agencies won‘t be able to come in and
fill those needs?

Another question I had involved a comment you made
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regarding Rule 11 that there may be some information that Rule
11 is being overenforced. I can only tell you that in the
circle of conversations that I have is that it is not being
enforced very much by the courts. I’d be interested in your
furnishing me that information.

So those are just a couple of comments. I mention
them to you to the extent that you can furnish them to me on a
break or something and that other people can address them
later on.

MR. BRICK: I'm pleased to, at your pleasure, to
speak now or talk with your privately.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Actually, I think those kinds of
questions may Jjustify a written response that could be
circulated to the members of the committee. I think Mr.
Kirk’s questions, particularly the one about a level playing
field, is probably one that ought to be gi?en a thorough and
careful answer, as I understand the way he’s asking the
gquestion.

MR. BRICK: I think that’s a good question. If I.
can take one minute, I‘’d like to --

CHATRMAN UDDC: Sure.

MR. BRICK: I am a trial lawyer. I don’‘t know your
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backgrounds, and I don’t know who among you may be trial
lawyers.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: He is.

MR. KIRK: I am too.

MR. BRICK: All right. Well, then, Mr. Kirk, you
fully appreciate that every time a witness gives a statement,
particularly at the outset of a case, and writes it down and
becoﬁes committed to it, that that statement can then be used
to cross-examine that witness later in deposition and later at
trial.

and I know you appreciate that witnesses’
recollections will differ in insignificant details, and yet
able attorneys on the other side will take those insignificant
details and use them to create a question of credibility about
the truth of the witness’ statement at all.

Now, is it fair to ask for that kind of a statement
and put that kind of a weapon into the hands of the
defendants, when the plaintiffs will not have the same kind of
ability to get such a statement? Why would you want to do.
that? What would be the need for doing that? That’s the
problem I have with this.

MR. KIRK: Well, representing defendants a lot, I
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might note that only you know that the suit is going to be
filed in advance; is that correct?

MR. BRICK: You’re saying the plaintiff and his or
her attorney are the only ones who know they’re going to file
the suit?

MR. KIRK: So you have a great opportunity for fact-
gathering in advance.

| MR. BRICK: Not necessarily.

MR. KiRK: And you may have the ability to go and
obtain statements prior to the suit being filed without the
other attorney being there, and that is an advantage that you
naturally have as a plaintiffs’ attorney. But that doesn‘t
mean because the field isn’t always exactly level that it puts
you at substantial advantage.

I will agree that what you say is, yes, it’s another
statement that somebody can use against you, just like, you
know, when you give your statement to the police, or you give
this statement or that statement, or én investigator comes out
and talks to you, likewise.

MR. BRICK: Well, I’d ask you to think, Mr. Kirk,
about what legitimate purpose requiring that that statement be

put in writing and given to the defendant serves.
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I mean, the purpose of the Legal Services
Corporation Act is not to make life easier for the defendants,
much as we would like it to be, perhaps -- I represent more
defendants than plaintiffs myself -~ but it is to make it
easier for the poor to be represented in court and to have
equal access to the system.

Giving the defendants yet another tool that could be
harmful to the plaintiff, and depriving the plaintiffs of that
same tool, perhaps -- if it were going to be required that
this be turned over, at minimum, you should require that
before an answer be filed that the defense key witnesses be
regquired to create a comparable statement and that that too be
avallable to the plaintiffs in discovery.

MR. KIRK: Two final comments: One, your initial
point was a good one, and I appreciate it. My response to you
is that of any attorney that always has to answer the
statement. But you did go back to saying, you know, what is
the purpose of it? And I’m not debating the purpose of it or
anything 1like that, I just would like to be able to hear more-:
of your specific examples of the disadvantage that it does put
people to.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: That’s why I think a written
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response would be appropriate, and you could do a burden
versus benefit analysis of that particular provision, because
it’s an important one. It has come up, I think, in everyone’s
presentation this morning and probably will continue to come
up. It may be something that all the folks who are testifying
on may want to give us an analysis of.

One of my concerns about the hearings is that
theré's only so much that we can get from your comments and
even our questioning. I think some thoughtful analysis on
paper will help the committee when it reaches its final
deliberations.

MR. BRICK: We’ll be happy to assist.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Dana.

MR. DANA: Steve, your presentation was excellent.
One of the reasons that some congressmen support a limitation
on non-LSC funds, or support the congressional restrictions on
all non-LSC funds, is because they feel, not necessarily that
they invented legal services, but the Legal Services program
out there is their program.

They say they’re afraid that when Congress wants
only certain things done by "their" program, that when other

funds are used to do other things, that reflects poorly on
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them as congressmen, and so they want to have their prograns,
these federal programs that they take ownership of, to only do
what they have permitted be done with federal funds.

I would 1like your considered response to that
congressional attitude. Mine is almost unprintable, but I
would rather hear it from you.

MR. BRICK: Okay. We will submit that as well.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Brick.

MR. BRICK: Thank you very much.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Brick, will you take another
seat. Mr. Witgraf has a question.

MR. BRICK: I’m sorry.

MR. WITGRAF: One brief request, Mr. Brick, and
thank you for'providing us with a copy of your text. It was
very helpful.

Going beyond the two areas that have been touched on
by Mr. Kirk and Mr. Dana, I’m interested particularly in your
comments regarding competitive bidding.

Before I make my request, let me say, by way of
background, that as I look at the issue or the possibility of
competitive bidding, I don’t look so much to the San Francisco

area, which is one of the bastions of the provision of legal
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services both by federally-assisted grantees and on a pro bono
basis, but rather I look to rural parts of the country, and
particularly to the Southeast part of the United States, where
the provision of legal services is much less effective and
much less widespread.

In fact, there are not strong Legal Services
grantees in some of those areas, and those that exist probably
need to be challenged if not replaced. Beyond that, you make
the comment at the bottom of page 8 that a competitive bid
program will undermine the efforts of programs like yours to
attract volunteer attorneys.

I guess I have a hard time understanding what the
basis for that allegation is. As Mr. Kirk would say, any
information or any specific examples that you can provide in
that regard would be very helpful to me in my thinking, why it
is that you’ve made that allegation and reached that
conclusion.

Thank you.

MR. BRICK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Brick.

MR. BRICK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I just realized that I may have
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overlocked introducing our president, Mr. Martin, when I was
indicating who was here. So let me correct that oversight.
The gentleman to my left is Mr. David Martin, the president of
Legal Services Corporation.

Dean Jeffrey Kupers?

MR. KUPERS: Kupers,

CHAIRMAN UDDQ: Kupers. O0f the JFK Law School.

After Dean Kupers, we’re going to take a five-
minute break just to give everyone a chance to run to the
men’s room, ladies’ room, whatever. But after Dean Kupers,
Ms. Lynn Murphy would be next, just so that we have some idea
of the direction in which we’re going. Excuse me. I’m sorry.
Russell Koch would be next.

Thank you, Dean. Go ahead.

STATEMENT OF JEFFREY KUPERS

MR. KUPERS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate
the opportunity to appear before you today.

I would like to address three issues that I think
are of great importance in the matters that you have before.
you for consideration. The first is the quality of lawyering
that is provided to the poor and how the Legal Services

Corporation can support high-quality lawyering in every way.
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MR. KIRK: Could you answer a question? Where is
JFK Law School.

MR. KUPERS: It’s in Contra Costa County. It’s
about 30 miles east of here. The city is Walnut Creek.

MR. KIRK: Private school?

MR. KUPERS: Yes.

MR. KIRK: There were three of us asking that at the
same time.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Is this your written statement?

MR. KUPERS: This is the statement that I’d like to
read in a moment from the president of our bar association in
Contra Costa County.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: ©Oh, okay. I was confused with the
name at the top who that came from. Okay. Thank you,

MR. KUPERS: The second issue 1is the matter of
setting priorities for the work of the Legal Services
programs, and the third is the competitive bidding issue.

If I may, though, I would 1like to begin with a
statement by the president of the Contra Costa County Bar.

Association, who asked me to read this on his behalf. I have

- presented copies to the panel.

As an attorney in Contra Costa County and the
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current Contra Costa Bar Association, I am concerned about
provision of legal services to all members of our community,
including those who cannot afford to hire a private attorney.

We are very fortunate in our county to have an
effective provider of civil legal services to the poor, Contra
Costa Legal Services Foundation. They have a dedicated board
of trustees, an experienced professional staff. I believe
that'any dilution of the CCLSF Board’s ability to set local
priorities for the program is a barrier to effective provision
of legal services.

It is essential that any reauthorization legislation
respect the authority of board members appointed by local bars
and other local organizations to set and evaluate program
priorities.

Section 9 of the McCollum-Stenholm reauthorization
bill would hamper CCLSF’s board’s ability to set priorities by
restricting their ability to raise funds by applying LSC
restrictions to all program funds. This provision would also
inhibit the board’s ability to set priorities based on the
needs of the poor in our county.

I urge you to not support this provision of the

McCollum-Stenholm bill or any provision that would dilute the
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ability of local boards to set program priorities or policies.

I would like to begin my remarks by mentioning the
basis upon which I am appearing today. First, I appreciate
the interest in John F. Kennedy Law School. And, certainly,
as a law school dean, as a legal educator, I’'m very interested
in the provision of legal services and the support for the
people who are doing it, as well as the training of those
peopie while they’re still in law school.

Secondly, I'm a member of the Board of Trustees of
the Contra Costa Legal Services Foundation and, thirdly, in
the past, a director of a Legal Services program in
California. 1In those three areas, I want to share with you my
concerns in the three subjects I mentioned about the pending
legislation and, in general, about the role of the board and
of Legal Services Corporation.

We at JFK, and I‘m sure this is true at every other
law school in the country, we are very concerned about the
quality of the lawyers in this country, the gquality in terms
of their legal skills in representing their clients, the.
quality in terms of their ethical and moral standards, of the
integrity of their law practice, and the quality in the sense

of their commitment to representing people not only who have a
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lot of money but also who don‘t, and finding some space in
their lives to make a commitment to the poor who cannot afford
the usual lawyers’ fees.

What I’m concerned about in this legislation and in
other things that have been happening in recent years is that
the things that we’re teaching people in law scheol, in terms
of how to do their job effectively, are being restricted when
thosé people go to work for the poor. And I want to give you
some examples.

One is the types of problems that the people are
authorized to handle. In some regard this affects the issue
of setting of priorities; in another regard, it just affects
the role of a lawyer in representing a community. To the
extent that restrictions are put on the types of cases that
lawyers can handle, what we’re saying to those lawyers is,
"You have to exclude a segment of the population, or at least
a segment of the people facing those particular problems, who
otherwise should have an attorney."

When someone with money goes to a lawyer, the lawyer
may refer them to someone else if it isn’t in the area of
specialty, but the lawyer is not going to say, "No matter how

much money you have, we’re not going to provide you a lawyer

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




S

‘\W'

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

. 61
in that area of concern that you have because that’s just our
policy or our procedure.” And yet in Legal Services, that’s
what it tends to be moving toward.

I would suggest to you that, just to pick a couple
examples, 'and there are many, the area of desegregation cases,
the area of amnesty issues, of affirmative action issues, of
local legislative redistricting issues, that these are things
that affect people’s day-to-day life, people without money,
the poverty community, and it’s an area that lawyers should be
entitled to get into in the representation of those clients.

A second thing is the legal tactics that we allow
our Legal Services attorneys to use in their litigation. Mr.
Gnaizda gave the example of the Kravath Swain agreement with
the government that was announced.

In addition to the issue of the money, I just want
to suggest to you that it’s very unlikely that whoever made
that deal for the federal government told the partners of the
law firm that, if in their judgment_a class action was the
appropriate type of format for litigation, based on the facts.
that they had before them, that they could not use that
approach. It’s just not going to happen in that setting.

And they’re not going to say to them that although,
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with your other clients, there’s a certain nature to the
attorney-client privilege that protects communications in both
directions, while you’re working for the government, we’re
going to restrict that attorney-client privilege, and your
records are going to be opened up in ways that would otherwise
be protected by that attorney-client privilege.

What I’'m saying is that we should not be tying the
hands of the people who are already at great odds in the
provision of legal services. We should be giving them the
same methods that we teach them in 1law school, the same
methods that they learn by going to continuing legal education
programs and by participating in their law firms or in their
Legal Services offices in training. We should give them the
whole array of tactics and techniques and approaches that the
courts allow for resolving these issues.

Another example that I might add is the question of
legislative lobbying. I‘m sure that when the average
corporation goes to a private lawyer ér pr;vate law firm, they
do not say to them, "Here’s our money; You can use it to.
litigate, but we don’t want you talking to any representatives
in the legislature, if that would be a more effective way to

get the result that we’re looking for." It just doesn’t
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happen.

In fact, in terms of the enormous problem with the
congestion of our courts, it might very well be that a Legal
Services attorney who attempts to resolve something throhgh
working with elected officials might be doing a much greater
service than by filing a number of lawsuits and trying to
resolve issues through litigation. It might be a much better
result for the courts, for the clients, for the government,
financially, in all ways.

I just want to urge you, in appearing here today, to
do everything vyou can to eliminate and prevent new
restrictions upon attorneys in the jobs that they’re trying to
do in representing their clients.

I would give as an example, my legal practice has
been mostly in the area of criminal defense work, other than
the legal services work. Public defenders, when they
represent people, are paid by the government, but they’re not
told that you can’t file a suppression motion or that you
can’t represent a certain class of defendants.

If a person needs a lawyer, they get the lawyer, and
the lawyer is entitled to use all of the aspects of practicing

law that are at their disposal for trying to represent that

Diversified BReporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643 |
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




R e

s

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

64
client fully, and that’s regardless of whether any particular
member of Congress or any particular public group has a
particular position on that particular crime that the person
might be charged with. That’s not the issue.

The issue is the gquality of the lawyering and the
gquality of the representation of the client. That’s what I
think is in the highest tradition of legal services in this
counfry is to provide full, quality representation to the
client.

The second area, in terms of priorities, is very
important to me because I sit on a board that has to set
priorities. It’s no surprise to all of you, from your work
with Legal Services, that there’s enough money to go around,
that there’s never a case that Contra Costa Legal Services
would take that we shouldn’t be taking, because we don’t have
any extra room in our budget to take unworthy cases or to do
work that’s not impertant in our county, and we can’t even do
all the cases that are worthy.

So we have to select out some areas. We have to.
make some Jjudgments about turning away an enormous number of
people, even though we want to represent them. How should we

set the priorities? We do it by talking to all the community
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groups in the organization, by doing surveys, by working with
local groups, such as the United Way, in surveys that they do.
What are the problems facing people in Contra Costa County?

Those are going to be very different problenms,
obviously, from counties elsewhere in the country, rural
counties, counties with larger urban areas than we have,
counties with totally different types of industries. It’s
going to be different all over the country, and that’s no
secret to anyone.

The question is: How do we decide what to do? To
the extent that there is some mandated national set of
priorities, even if they’re suggestions -- I think we all know
the way that funding is done, and the way these issues are
pushed and argued about and lobbied for -- is that it’s going
to set some type of pressure, some type of restriction on the
local entities to do their job and to choose as priorities the
things that are most important in that area.

We do still have the system of providing 1legal
services on a county basis, and that’s the way we should also.
be setting the priorities.

The other problem in priority-setting has been

addressed, and I’ll only mention it in this context, and
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